
Scrutiny Standing  
Panel Agenda 

1 

 
 
 
 
Finance and Performance Management Scrutiny Panel 
Tuesday, 25th April, 2006 
 
Place: Civic Offices, High Street, Epping 
  
Time: 7.00 pm 
  
Democratic Services 
Officer: 

S G Hill - Senior Democratic Services Officer 
Tel: 01992 564249 Email: shill@eppingforestdc.gov.uk 

 
Members: 
 
Councillors J M Whitehouse (Chairman), A Green (Vice-Chairman), S Barnes, R Chidley, 
Mrs D Collins, T Farr, K Faulkner, Mrs R Gadsby and R Goold 
 
 
 
 

 
PLEASE NOTE THAT THIS MEETING IS OPEN TO ALL MEMBERS TO ATTEND 

 
 

 1. APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE   
 

 2. SUBSTITUTE MEMBERS (COUNCIL MINUTE 39 - 23.7.02)   
 

  (Head of Research and Democratic Services)  To report the appointment of any 
substitute members for the meeting. 
 

 3. DECLARATION OF INTERESTS   
 

  (Head of Research and Democratic Services). To declare interests in any items on the 
agenda. 
 
In considering whether to declare a personal or a prejudicial interest under the Code 
of Conduct, Overview & Scrutiny members are asked pay particular attention to 
paragraph 11 of the Code in addition to the more familiar requirements. 
 
This requires the declaration of a personal and prejudicial interest in any matter before 
an OS Committee which relates to a decision of or action by another Committee or 
Sub Committee of the Council, a Joint Committee or Joint Sub Committee in which the 
Council is involved and of which the Councillor is also a member. 
 
Paragraph 11 does not refer to Cabinet decisions or attendance at an OS meeting 
purely for the purpose of answering questions or providing information on such a 

 



Finance and Performance Management Scrutiny Panel Tuesday, 25 April 2006 
 

2 

matter. 
 

 4. NOTES OF PREVIOUS MEETINGS  (Pages 3 - 10) 
 

  To consider and agree the notes of the meetings of the Panel held on 16 and 30 
January and 7 February 2006. (attached) 
 

 5. TERMS OF REFERENCE / WORK PROGRAMME  (Pages 11 - 12) 
 

  (Chairman/Lead Officer) The Overview and Scrutiny Committee has agreed the draft 
Work Programme for the Panel. This is attached.  
 

 6. DRAFT BEST VALUE PERFORMANCE PLAN 2006/07  (Pages 13 - 76) 
 

  (Head of Human Resources and Performance Management) To consider the attached 
report. 
 

 7. KEY PERFORMANCE INDICATORS 2005/06 AND 2006/07  (Pages 77 - 78) 
 

  (Head of Human Resources and Performance Management) To consider the attached 
report. 
 

 8. DRAFT COUNCIL PLAN 2006-2010  (Pages 79 - 84) 
 

  (Head of Human Resources and Performance Management) To consider the attached 
report. 
 

 9. REPORTS TO BE MADE TO THE NEXT MEETING OF THE OVERVIEW AND 
SCRUTINY COMMITTEE   

 
  To consider which reports are ready to be submitted to the Overview and Scrutiny 

Committee at its next meeting. 
 

 10. FUTURE MEETINGS   
 

  To consider the forward programme of meeting dates for the Panel. 
 

 



1

EPPING FOREST DISTRICT COUNCIL 
NOTES OF A MEETING OF FINANCE AND PERFORMANCE MANAGEMENT SCRUTINY 

PANEL
HELD ON MONDAY, 16 JANUARY 2006 

IN COUNCIL CHAMBER, CIVIC OFFICES, HIGH STREET, EPPING 
AT 7.00  - 9.11 PM 

Members
Present:

J M Whitehouse (Chairman), A Green (Vice-Chairman), K Angold-
Stephens, R Chidley, Mrs D Collins, Mrs R Gadsby and 
Mrs J H Whitehouse 

Other members 
present:

R Glozier, M Heavens, D Jacobs, J Knapman, S Metcalfe, Mrs C Pond 
and C Whitbread 

Apologies for 
Absence:

S Barnes (Deputy Leader), K Faulkner and R Goold 

Officers Present J Bissell (Principal Accountant), J Gilbert (Head of Environmental 
Services), A Hall (Head of Housing Services), D Macnab (Head of Leisure 
Services), P Maddock (Assistant Head of Finance), R Palmer (Head of 
Finance), J Preston (Head of Planning and Economic Development), 
A Scott (Head of Information, Communications and Technology), R Sharp 
(Principal Accountant) and S G Hill (Senior Democratic Services Officer) 

Also in 
attendance:

(none)

34. SUBSTITUTE MEMBERS (COUNCIL MINUTE 39 - 23.7.02)  

Noted that Councillor Angold – Stephens was substituting for Councillor Faulkner and 
Councillor J H Whitehouse was substituting for Councillor Goold. 

35. DECLARATION OF INTERESTS  

No declarations of Interest were made at the meeting. 

36. NOTES OF THE LAST MEETING  

Notes of the meeting held on 8 November 2005 agreed as a correct record. 

37. TERMS OF REFERENCE / WORK PROGRAMME  

Position on work programme noted. 

38. BUDGET  - REVISED FOUR YEAR FORECAST  

The Head of Finance reported that the Finance Committee had asked for a revised 
four year forecast to be prepared taking account of the provisional Local Government 
settlements for 2006/07 and 2007/08 which had provided the Council with substantial 
increases in formula grant. 

The Panel considered a report seeking Scrutiny views on a revised four year forecast 
and the proposed level of Council Tax increase for 2006/07 and subsequent years. 

Agenda Item 4

Page 3



Finance and Performance Management Scrutiny Panel Monday, 16 January 2006 

2

The Panel noted that the provisional settlement for the next two financial years was a 
very favourable one.  The Council was already in a strong financial position and this 
had now been enhanced. The Head of Finance advised that with careful 
management and spending targeted on priority areas it should be possible to achieve 
improvements in key service areas.  He cautioned, however, that it was important 
that spending was kept under control and that an impression was not created that all 
growth bids would be accepted regardless of their merit. 

The Panel endorsed this view and need to be cautious in the approach to growth. 

RECOMMENDED to Cabinet: 

(1) That the revised four year forecast be agreed and that District Council Tax be 
increased in the next four financial years in line with inflation; 

(2) That the potential for growth in future budgets be considered in due course 
having regard to the Council Plan for 2006-2010. 

39. DRAFT DETAILED PORTFOLIO BUDGETS  

The Panel considered the detailed Portfolio Holder budgets. 

RECOMMENDED to Cabinet: 

(1) That the draft Portfolio Holder budgets be endorsed and the Cabinet be 
informed accordingly; 

(2) That the Portfolio Holder for Community Wellbeing be asked to consider 
increased support to the Grant Aid Budget in light of the provisional settlement; 

(3) That the Portfolio Holder for ICT and Corporate Support Services be asked to 
report to the Panel on the impact of personal searches on the Local Land Charges 
budget;

(4) That following the success of the Paternoster Street Cleaning Team, 
consideration be given by the Portfolio Holder to extending the use of such teams 
into other areas;  

(5) That the Cabinets attention be drawn to the need to consider the future 
income from North Weald Airfield given the high levels of subsidy and reliance on a 
single source of income; and 

(6) That Capital Budgets also be reported to the Panel next year. 

40. REPORTS TO BE MADE TO THE NEXT MEETING OF THE OVERVIEW AND 
SCRUTINY COMMITTEE  

Four year forecast and Budget review. 

41. FUTURE MEETINGS  

Noted that the next meeting would be held on 30 January 2006 at 7.00 p.m. 

Page 4



1

EPPING FOREST DISTRICT COUNCIL 
NOTES OF A MEETING OF FINANCE AND PERFORMANCE MANAGEMENT SCRUTINY 

PANEL
HELD ON MONDAY, 30 JANUARY 2006 

IN COMMITTEE ROOM 1, CIVIC OFFICES, HIGH STREET, EPPING 
AT 7.00  - 8.55 PM 

Members
Present:

J M Whitehouse (Chairman), Mrs D Collins, Mrs R Gadsby, R Goold and 
J Markham 

Other members 
present:

Mrs P Smith 

Apologies for 
Absence:

S Barnes (Deputy Leader) and K Faulkner 

Officers Present P Haywood (Joint Chief Executive), T Tidey (Head of Human Resources 
and Performance Management) and S G Hill (Senior Democratic Services 
Officer)

Also in 
attendance:

(none)

42. SUBSTITUTE MEMBERS (COUNCIL MINUTE 39 - 23.7.02)  

Noted that Councillor Markham was substituting for Councillor Faulkner. 

43. DECLARATION OF INTERESTS  

No interests were declared. 

44. DRAFT COUNCIL PLAN 2006-2010  

The Panel made the following comments of the Draft Plan: 

(1) GU2 – The Panel asked that the Portfolio Holder give consideration to setting 
a higher recycling target for the authority; 

(2) HN1 – The Panel considered that the proposed target would not meet the 
objective. They noted that the Housing OS Panel were considering the potential of 
small development sites and considered that this objective should be revisited once 
the Panel had reported. Furthermore the Panel questioned whether the objective was 
achievable given the demand for affordable homes and the shortage of housing; 

(3) HN4 – The Panel considered that the proposed limit of £200,000 on private 
sector grants would not address the objective. i.e. more resources were likely to be 
required. The Panel also enquired whether the production of an Empty Homes 
Strategy was on target for 1/9/6 

(4) SC1 – The Panel thought that a local Performance Indicator mighht be an 
appropriate way to measure this action; 

Page 5



Finance and Performance Management Scrutiny Panel Monday, 30 January 2006 

2

(5) SC2 – The Panel thought that there was a need to have some measure of 
performance for the Community Policing Team although this would not necessarily 
be reflected in the Council Plan itself; 

(6) SC3 - The Panel thought that there was a need to have some measure of 
performance for the effectiveness of ASBOs although this might form a local 
Performance Indicator rather than be included in the Plan itself; 

(7) EP6 – The Panel felt that objective should be broader to encompass links 
with the wider business community not just the TCP’s and that a different type of 
Business Forum might be needed; 

(8) IP3 – The Panel noted the increase in resources in Planning and that the 
target would be to attain and maintain top quartile performance; and 

(9) IP5 – Agreed that the reference to the specific list of KPI’s should be replaced 
with ‘as identified by members each year’. 

The Panel also considered that the Council’s Community Leadership role should 
included within the plan. 

The Panel agreed proposed consultation arrangements but asked that in addition to 
discussion at Local Council’s Liaison Committee, the plan be sent to each 
Parish/Town Council individually seeking their comments. The Panel noted that it 
was the officers’ intention to seek advice from the Race Equality Council on groups to 
be approached during the consultation period. Also agreed that consultation on the 
plan should also be undertaken via the Council’s Website. 

45. PUBLIC CONSULTATION AND ENGAGEMENT POLICY AND STRATEGY  

The Panel received proposals for a Policy and Strategy for Consultation and 
Engagement. Noted that each year the Cabinet would receive proposals under the 
Policy and that Overview and Scrutiny would then have a role in overseeing the 
programme. 

The Policy was supported and the Panel asked that the Town Centre Partnerships be 
specifically listed under section 3 (consultees). 

RECOMMENDED to Cabinet: 

That subject to the amendment above, the policy be adopted. 

46. REPORTS TO BE MADE TO THE NEXT MEETING OF THE OVERVIEW AND 
SCRUTINY COMMITTEE  

(i) Council Plan 2006-2010; and 

(ii) Consultation and Engagement Policy and Strategy. 

47. FUTURE MEETINGS  

Next meeting 7 February 2006 at 7.00 p.m. 

Page 6



1

EPPING FOREST DISTRICT COUNCIL 
NOTES OF A MEETING OF FINANCE AND PERFORMANCE MANAGEMENT SCRUTINY 

PANEL
HELD ON TUESDAY, 7 FEBRUARY 2006 

IN COMMITTEE ROOM 1, CIVIC OFFICES, HIGH STREET, EPPING 
AT 7.00  - 8.40 PM 

Members
Present:

J M Whitehouse (Chairman), A Green (Vice-Chairman), S Barnes (Deputy 
Leader), R Chidley, Mrs D Collins and R Goold 

Other members 
present:

(none)

Apologies for 
Absence:

K Faulkner and Mrs R Gadsby 

Officers Present J Gilbert (Head of Environmental Services), A Hall (Head of Housing 
Services), D Macnab (Head of Leisure Services), P Maddock (Assistant 
Head of Finance), J Preston (Head of Planning and Economic 
Development), T Tidey (Head of Human Resources and Performance 
Management), S Tautz (Senior Performance Management Officer) and 
S G Hill (Senior Democratic Services Officer) 

Also in 
attendance:

(none)

48. SUBSTITUTE MEMBERS (COUNCIL MINUTE 39 - 23.7.02)  

No substitutes appointed. 

49. DECLARATION OF INTERESTS  

No declarations of interest were made. 

50. TERMS OF REFERENCE / WORK PROGRAMME  

Noted that the Council Plan had now been considered by the Cabinet and was now 
subject to a further consultation period before being considered by the Overview and 
Scrutiny Committee in April 2006. 

The Community Conference issue should now be deleted from the programme as 
this had been dealt with under the report on Consultation considered on 30 January 
2006.

A report on Local Land Charges Performance was requested for the next meeting. 

51. BEST VALUE PERFORMANCE PLAN 2006/07 - SUMMARY VERSION

The Panel reviewed the summary BVPP for 2006/07. Noted that the summary 
followed the format from previous years. The next BVPP would be aligned to the 
emerging Council Plan. 

Minor drafting changes were suggested to the summary including: 

Page 7



Finance and Performance Management Scrutiny Panel Tuesday, 7 February 2006 

2

(i) moving the SLM contract to the top of the achievements for the last year 
under Leisure Portfolio; 

(ii) aligning performance on waste management to those in the indicator 
information;

(iii) inclusion of issues of the East of England Plan and maintaining performance 
on planning applications within the Planning and Economic Development Portfolio. 

It was noted that the relevant Portfolio Holder would be consulted on the changes 
proposed by the Panel. 

Agreed:

That the draft Summary Best Value Performance Plan be recommended to the 
Cabinet for adoption. 

52. KEY PERFORMANCE INDICATORS 2005/06  

The Panel Reviewed Performance of the Council’s KPI’s up to month nine of the 
current year and made the following observations: 

(i) That annually collected PI’s be considered with the next quarter’s figures; 

(ii) EH6 (Percentage of Licence Applications Processed within statutory period) – 
The Panel asked that the good performance on licence application be recorded and 
that this performance be congratulated; 

(iii) BV 82 (Waste Recycling) – Noted that the BVPI’s relating to Waste 
Management would be audited at year end. They all currently showed as ‘Amber’. 
Noted that residual waste had remained static rather than increased this year; 

(iv) BV199(a) and (b) (Highways Litter and Graffiti) – Noted the encouraging 
downward trend on land and highways with assessed levels of litter being below 
acceptable levels. It was agreed that indicators needed to be more appropriate for 
Graffiti removal. Noted that the Environment Scrutiny Panel would be receiving a 
report on the Environment Protection Act in March 2006.

(v) BV199 (d) (Flying Tipping)– overall downward trend. It was not known 
whether moves not to collect side waste would affect fly-tipping. No prosecutions had 
been made this year.

(vi) BV64 – (Vacant dwellings) – Noted that the Housing Panel would be looking 
at this issue. It was noted that a Strategy was required. It was queried whether this 
should be a key indicator for next year due to the low levels of vacant dwellings in the 
area.

(vii) BV183 (a) (Use of Bed and Breakfast Accommodation) – Noted that this only 
covered families with dependants. The Council continued to house approximately 30 
single persons in B and B at any one time. 

(viii) H15 (a) – (Affordable Homes) – Noted that the Target of 74 affordable homes 
this year was still expected. 

Page 8



Finance and Performance Management Scrutiny Panel Tuesday, 7 February 2006 

3

(ix) BV12 – (Working Days Lost to Sickness) – Noted that the Council wouldn’t 
make top quartile performance although Services were working on ill-health cases. 

(x) BV170(a) (Visits to museums and galleries) – Head of Service to devise 
appropriate target for 2006/07; 

(xi) BV109 (a) – (c) (Planning Applications) – The Head of Service reported as 
follows on Planning Application Performance: 

Type of Application No. Received No. Dealt within Target 

Major 25 9 

Minor 306 183 

Other 1130 904 

Noted that early year performance had been under previous systems. 3rd quarter 
performance had been much improved following new ICT systems and the 
employment of the ‘Hit Squad’. 

(xii) BV156 – (Disabled Accessibility) -  Noted that the definition of this indicator 
was being reviewed such that it was anticipated that the Council’s performance had 
been previously under-stated. 

53. QUARTERLY FINANCIAL MONITORING  

Noted that the Panel was required, within its terms of reference, to consider financial 
monitoring reports on key areas of income and expenditure for each portfolio. The 
Panel considered the second quarterly report covering the period from 1 April 2005 to 
31 December 2005. 

The Panel noted that main variances within the budget. It was noted that as a result 
of member decisions to increase car parking charges there had been a higher than 
expected income on this budget. 

Noted that a report on the lower than anticipated income in Local Land Charges had 
already been requested. 

54. REPORTS TO BE MADE TO THE NEXT MEETING OF THE OVERVIEW AND 
SCRUTINY COMMITTEE  

(a) BVPP Summary; 

(b) KPI’s Performance 

55. FUTURE MEETINGS  

The next meeting of the Panel would be held on 25 April 2006 at 7.00 p.m. 

Page 9



This page is intentionally left blank

Page 10



W
or

k 
P

ro
gr

am
m

e 
20

06
/0

7–
 D

ra
ft 

as
 a

t 3
 A

pr
il 

20
06

 
    

 
Fi

na
nc

e 
an

d 
P

er
fo

rm
an

ce
 M

an
ag

em
en

t S
ta

nd
in

g 
P

an
el

 
 (1

) B
es

t V
al

ue
 P

er
fo

rm
an

ce
 D

at
a 

 
Q

ua
rte

rly
  

M
on

ito
rin

g 
of

 B
V

P
P

 b
as

ke
t t

o 
be

 u
nd

er
ta

ke
n 

qu
ar

te
rly

  

(2
)P

er
fo

rm
an

ce
 (S

er
vi

ce
s 

to
 b

e 
sc

ru
tin

is
ed

 in
 R

ot
at

io
n)

  
 

 
La

nd
 C

ha
rg

es
 a

nd
 L

eg
al

 a
nd

 A
dm

in
is

tra
tio

n 
S

er
vi

ce
s 

to
 

be
 s

cr
ut

in
is

ed
 a

t n
ex

t m
ee

tin
g.

 

(3
) Q

ua
rte

rly
 F

in
an

ci
al

 M
on

ito
rin

g 
 

20
06

/0
7 

D
at

e 
fo

r p
er

io
d 

up
 to

 D
ec

em
be

r 2
00

5 
la

st
 re

vi
ew

ed
 b

y 
P

an
el

 o
n 

7 
Fe

br
ua

ry
 2

00
6,

 
(4

) A
nn

ua
l A

ud
it 

P
la

n 
 

Fe
br

ua
ry

 2
00

7 
R

ef
er

re
d 

by
 O

S
C

 o
n 

2 
M

ar
ch

 2
00

6 

(5
) R

ev
ie

w
 o

f L
oc

al
 L

an
d 

ch
ar

ge
s 

  
 

R
ep

or
t o

n 
in

cr
ea

se
 re

qu
es

te
d 

 

(6
) L

oc
al

 A
re

a 
A

gr
ee

m
en

ts
  

 
 

N
ew

 it
em

 a
dd

ed
 b

y 
O

S
C

 o
n 

16
 M

ar
ch

 2
00

6 

1 
Ju

ne
, 1

5 
A

ug
us

t, 
14

 N
ov

em
be

r 2
00

5,
 

15
 J

an
ua

ry
,  

12
 F

eb
ru

ar
y 

20
07

 

 

Agenda Item 5

Page 11



Page 12

This page is intentionally left blank



 1

Report to Finance and Performance 
Management Overview and Scrutiny 
Panel 
Date of meeting: 25 April 2006 
 
 
 
Portfolio:  Finance and Performance Management 
 
Subject: Draft Best Value Performance Plan 2006/07 
 
Officer contact for further information:  S. Tautz (Ext 4180) 
 
Committee Secretary:   
 
 

 
Recommendations/Decisions Required: 

 
That the Scrutiny Panel consider and comment on the proposed format and 
structure of the Council’s draft Best Value Performance Plan for 2006/07.  

 
Report: 
 
1. (Head of Human Resources and Performance Management) The Local Government 

Act 1999 and the Best Value regulations requires all best value authorities to prepare 
an annual Best Value Performance Plan (BVPP), to provide an opportunity for to report 
on current performance articulate proposals for improvement for the coming year. The 
Plan is required to: 

 
(a) summarise the Council’s successes in meeting its key priorities, objectives and 

targets; 
(b) show where these key priorities, objectives and targets were not met; 
(c) inform customers of the Council’s key priorities, objectives and targets for the 

next year; 
(d) publish the outcomes of Best Value service reviews undertaken during the last 

year; and 
(e) compare the Council’s performance for with that for previous years. 

 
2. The Council’s Best Value Performance Plan (BVPP) is produced in two versions each 

year. A detailed version of the Plan is prepared for the Government, the Audit 
Commission and other bodies involved in the evaluation of the Council’s performance, 
which is also made available to those who desire a comprehensive explanation of its 
plans and activities. In addition and in accordance with a recommendation of the Audit 
Commission, a short summary of the BVPP is also distributed to all households in the 
district within the explanatory leaflet issued with the annual Council Tax demands.  

 
3. The Office of the Deputy Prime Minister (ODPM) issues occasional guidance to local 

authorities on the content of BVPPs, stipulating what matters should be included or not 
included within plans. As a result of guidance issued in March 2003 and March 2004, 
the following no longer need to be published in the BVPP: 

 
(a) CPA scores (where available); 
(b) Summary financial information; 
(c) Progress in implementing improvement measures over the past three years (eg. 

 Agenda Item 6

Page 13



 2

Best Value Reviews);  
(d) Progress against Local Public Service Agreements; 
(e) Details of the way in which the Council exercises its functions. 
(f) The five-year programme of Best Value Service Reviews; 
(g) An efficiency summary or consultation statement;  
(h) Historical, quartile and other comparative data on Best Value Performance 

Indicators; and 
(i) Local Performance Indicator data. 

 
4. In accordance with previous practice, the majority of the detail not now statutorily 

required to be included in the BVPP has been removed and much of the corporate and 
strategic information usually included has transferred to the revised Council Plan that is 
currently in preparation. However, areas such as the Council’s CPA score and 
improvement proposals, service reviews and local performance indicator data has 
continued to be included in the BVPP. Although not required to be included, historical, 
quartile and other comparative data on Best Value Performance Indicators will also 
continue to be incorporated within the BVPP, as these details form part of the revised 
performance monitoring arrangements agreed as part of the review of the council’s 
approach to overview and scrutiny. 

 
5. The draft BVPP is attached for the consideration of the Scrutiny Panel, and follows the 

structure of the Plan for 2005/06. Members are asked to comment on the proposed 
format of the draft document, rather than making detailed comments on the content at 
this early stage.   Subject to the agreement of the Panel to this draft version of the 
document, the BVPP will be referred to the Cabinet on 5 June 2006 and the Council 
meeting on 29 June 2006 for adoption. 

 
6. In considering the draft BVPP members will note that the reporting of outturn 

performance information for 2005/06 is outstanding, and that a number of other areas 
still also require completion. In view of the short space of time since the end of the year 
performance and other details cannot be incorporated at the present time, although all 
outturn performance information will be reported to the Panel at its meeting on 1 June 
2006 and will be incorporated within the draft BVPP prior to consideration by the 
Cabinet and the Council and the eventual publication of the document. 

 
7. The Scrutiny Panel is requested to consider and comment on the proposed format and 

structure of the draft BVPP for 2006/07. 
 
Reason for decision: 
 
8. To enable the publication of the Best Value Performance Plan in accordance with the 

statutory timescale 2006. 
 
Options considered and rejected: 
 
9. None. The consideration of the proposed format and structure of the draft Best Value 

Performance Plan for 2006/07 allows for scrutiny of the Council’s aims for next year 
and its performance in 2005/06.  

 
Consultation undertaken: 
 
10. All Heads of Service have contributed to the content of the draft BVPP. 
 
Resource implications:  
 
Budget provision: The production and publication of the BVPP can be met from within 
existing Performance Management Unit budgets 

Page 14



 3

Personnel: The production and publication of the BVPP can be met from within existing 
Performance Management Unit staff resources 
Land: Nil 
 
Council Plan/BVPP reference: Nil 
Relevant statutory powers: Local Government Act 1999 
 
Background papers: None 
Environmental/Human Rights Act/Crime and Disorder Act Implications: Nil 
Key Decision reference (if required): None 
 

Page 15



Page 16

This page is intentionally left blank



Page 17



Page 18



Page 19



Page 20



Page 21



Page 22



Page 23



Page 24



Page 25



Page 26



Page 27



Page 28



Page 29



Page 30



Page 31



Page 32



Page 33



Page 34



Page 35



Page 36



Page 37



Page 38



Page 39



Page 40



Page 41



Page 42



Page 43



Page 44



Page 45



Page 46



Page 47



Page 48



Page 49



Page 50



Page 51



Page 52



Page 53



Page 54



Page 55



Page 56



Page 57



Page 58



Page 59



Page 60



Page 61



Page 62



Page 63



Page 64



Page 65



Page 66



Page 67



Page 68



Page 69



Page 70



Page 71



Page 72



Page 73



Page 74



Page 75



Page 76



 1

Report to Overview & Scrutiny 
Committee 
Date of meeting: 25 April 2006 
 
 
 
Portfolio:  Finance and Performance Management 
 
Subject: Key Performance Indicators 2005/06 and 2006/07 
 
Officer contact for further information:  S. Tautz (Ext 4180) 
 
Committee Secretary:   
 
 

 
Recommendations/Decisions Required: 
 
That the Scrutiny Panel note that the Council’s performance in relation to the Key 
Performance Indicators for 2005/06, and proposals for the adoption of Key 
Performance Indicators for 2006/07, will be considered at the next meeting.  

 
Report: 
 
1. (Head of Human Resources and Performance Management) As the Scrutiny Panel will 

be aware, a range of 40 Key Best Value and Local Performance Indicators (KPIs) for 
2005/06 was adopted by the Cabinet at its meeting in September 2005. The KPIs are 
crucial to the council’s core business and its corporate priorities, and the aim of the 
indicators is to focus improvement actions on key areas and to move performance 
against each into the top quartile of performing local authorities.  

 
2. Progress in achieving top quartile performance in respect of the KPIs is reported to the 

Scrutiny Panel and the relevant Portfolio Holder at the conclusion of each quarter.  
However, in view of the short space of time since the end of the 2005/06 year, it has 
not been possible to fully collect and compile relevant performance information. 
Members are advised that performance in relation to the KPIs for 2005/06, and 
proposals for the adoption of KPIs for 2006/07, will be considered at the meeting of the 
Scrutiny Panel to be held on 1 June 2006. 

 
Reason for decision: 
 
3. To ensure that the Council monitors progress against its aim of achieving top quartile 

district council performance of 40% of its key performance indicators for 2005/06 and 
future years, and that proposals for corrective action are considered in r. 

 
Options considered and rejected: 
 
4. None. The Council has previously agreed arrangements for monitoring progress 

against the key performance indicators. 
 
Consultation undertaken: 
 
5. None required. 
 
Resource implications:  
 

 Agenda Item 7

Page 77



 2

Budget/Personnel/Land: The respective Head of Service will identify the resource 
requirements for any proposals for corrective action in respect of areas of current under-
performance set out in this report. 
 
Community Plan/BVPP reference: None 
Relevant statutory powers: None 
 
Background papers: None 
Environmental/Human Rights Act/Crime and Disorder Act Implications: None 
Key Decision reference: (if required) None 
 

Page 78



 1

Report to: Finance and Performance 
Management Overview and Scrutiny 
Panel 
Date of meeting: 25 April 2006 
 
 
 
Portfolio:  Finance and Performance Management 
 
Subject: Draft Council Plan 2006-2010 
 
Officer contact for further information:  S. Tautz (Ext 4180) 
 
Committee Secretary:  S G Hill (EXT 4249) 
 
 
Recommendations/Decisions Required: 
 
 

That the Scrutiny Panel note that the timescale for consultation on the draft 
Council Plan for 2006 to 2010 has been extended by a period of two months. 

 
Report: 
 
1. (Head of Human Resources and Performance Management) The Scrutiny Panel has 

previously considered the proposed format and structure of the new Council Plan for 
2006 to 2010, and agreed the draft document for consultation purposes. 

 
2. The new Council Plan and its aims and objectives have since been subject to 

consultation with members, residents, partner agencies and other local and 
representative organisations, so as to ensure that actions and resources are targeted at 
those areas of greatest importance. A period of one month was set for the consultation 
period and those agencies and other organisations that have been formally consulted in 
relation to the draft Plan are detailed in Appendix 1 to this report.  Consultation in 
respect of the new Council Plan has also been promoted by articles in the ‘Forester’ 
magazine, through the local press, and at the Leader of the Council’s weekly media 
briefing. The draft Plan is available at the Council’s information centres and can be 
downloaded from the website, where a consultation form can also be completed on-
line.  

 
3. The results of the consultation undertaken in respect of the draft Council Plan were due 

to be reported to the Overview and Scrutiny Committee on 6 April 2006, with the 
document then being referred to the Cabinet later this month and the Council meeting 
on 24 April 2006 for adoption. However, the level of response to the consultation 
exercise is currently extremely low, and no more than about twenty responses had 
been received at the time of the preparation of this report. In addition, the originally 
agreed consultation timescale for the Council Plan did not meet the requirements of the 
Code of Practice on Consultation and Policy Appraisal, agreed with the local voluntary 
and community sectors as part of the Epping Forest District Local Compact, that 
identifies that wherever possible a twelve week period will be allowed for consultation 
with the voluntary sector.  

 
4. In view of the need to ensure that consultation on the Council’s future priorities is as 

inclusive and accessible as possible, it was considered appropriate for the consultation 
period on the draft Council Plan to be extended.  Given the key role of the local 

 Agenda Item 8

Page 79



 2

voluntary and community agencies in representing sectors of the district, the Overview 
and Scrutiny Panel has agreed that the consultation period should be extended by two 
months, in order to comply with the provisions of the Local Compact.  

 
5. The results of the consultation undertaken in respect of the draft Council Plan will now 

be reported to the Overview and Scrutiny Committee meeting on 6 July 2006. The draft 
document will then be referred to the Cabinet on 10 July 2006 and the Council meeting 
on 25 July 2006 for adoption, before being professionally designed and printed in 
accordance with the Council’s corporate identity guidelines.  

 
Reason for decision: 
 
6. To ensure that consultation on the Council Plan and the authority’s future priorities is as 

inclusive and accessible as possible, and to comply with the provisions of the Epping 
Forest District Local Compact.  

 
Options considered and rejected: 
 
7. To not extend the consultation period in respect of the draft Council Plan None. The 

Council is expected to identify its key priorities and the content of the previous Council 
Plan was highlighted as a weakness in the first round of second-tier Comprehensive 
Performance Assessments, and the contribution of residents, partners and service 
users is critical to this process. 

 
Consultation undertaken: 
 
8. Consultation in relation to the recommendation contained in this report has been 

undertaken with the Finance and Performance Management Portfolio Holder, the 
Chairmen of the Overview and Scrutiny Committee and the Finance and Performance 
Management Scrutiny Panel, and the Management Board. 

 
Resource implications:  
 
Budget provision: Consultation on the new Council Plan can be met from within existing 
budget provision 
Personnel: None 
Land: None 
 
Council Plan/BVPP reference: The Council’s Customer Charter sets out a commitment to 
consult service users and residents 
Relevant statutory powers: None 
 
Background papers: None 
Environmental/Human Rights Act/Crime and Disorder Act Implications: None 
Key Decision reference: (if required) None 
 

Page 80



APPENDIX 1 
 

DRAFT COUNCIL PLAN 2006 – 2010 
 

CONSULTEE LIST 
 

 
1. Members of Parliament: 

• Mrs E. Laing MP (Epping Forest Constituency) 

• W. Rammell MP (Harlow Constituency (part)) 

• E. Pickles MP (Brentwood and Ongar Constituency (part)) 

2. All members of Epping Forest District Council 

3. All officers of Epping Forest District Council 

4. Essex County Councillors for the Epping Forest District:  

• C. Finn (Buckhurst Hill And Loughton South) 

• M. Tomkins (Chigwell And Loughton Broadway) 

• T. Spencer (Epping And Theydon Bois) 

• C. Pond (Loughton Central) 

• A. Jackson (North Weald And Nazeing) 

• G. McEwen (Ongar And Rural) 

• Mrs. E. Webster (Waltham Abbey) 

5. Local Councils: 

• Abbess, Beauchamp and Berners Roding 

• Buckhurst Hill 

• Chigwell 

• Epping 

• Epping Upland 

• Fyfield 

• High Ongar 

• Lambourne 

• Loughton Town 

• Matching 

• Moreton, Bobbingworth and the Lavers 

• Nazeing 

• North Weald Bassett 

• Ongar 

• Roydon 

• Sheering 

Page 81



• Stanford Rivers 

• Stapleford Abbotts 

• Stapleford Tawney 

• Theydon Bois 

• Theydon Garnon 

• Theydon Mount 

• Waltham Abbey 

• Willingale 

6. Local Councils Liaison Committee 

7. Members of the European Parliament (Eastern Region): 

• C. Beazley MEP 

• A. Duff MEP 

• R. Howitt MEP 

• R. Sturdy MEP 

• J. Titford MEP 

• G. Van Orden MEP 

• T. Wise MEP 

8. Town Centre Partnerships: 

• Buckhurst Hill 

• Epping 

• Ongar 

• Loughton Broadway 

• Loughton High Road 

• Waltham Abbey 

9. Voluntary Action Epping Forest 

10. Epping Forest Tenants and Leaseholders Federation 

11. Citizens’ Advice Bureaux: 

• Epping 

• Loughton 

• Waltham Abbey 

12. Environment Agency (Thames Region) 

13. Superintendent of Epping Forest 

14. Epping Forest Primary Care Trust 

15. Epping Forest Local Strategic Partnership 

16. Epping Forest Crime And Disorder Reduction Partnership 

17. Essex Police (Divisional Commander) 

Page 82



18. Essex Fire and Rescue Service (Harlow and Epping Command) 

19. Lee Valley Regional Park Authority 

20. Essex County Council: 

• Chief Executive 

• Youth Services (Epping Forest Locality) 

• Gypsy Services 

20. Stonewall 

21. St. Clare Hospice Trust 

22. Epping Forest College 

23. Royal National Institute For The Blind 

24. Royal National Institute For The Deaf 

25. Guide Dogs For The Blind Association (Redbridge Branch) 

26. Help The Aged 

27. Gypsy Council 

28. Essex Race Equality Council 

29. Essex Disabled Peoples Association 

30. Equal Opportunities Commission 

31. Age Concern Essex 

32. Faith Groups: 

• Churches Together In Epping And District 

• Baha’i 

• Muslim 

• Sikh 

• Hindu 

33. Epping Forest Access Group 

34. Disability Rights Commission 

35. The Box 

36. Epping Old Peoples Welfare Association 

37. Action In Mental Health 

38. Theydon Bois Day Club 

39. Theydon Bois Village Association 

40. Epping Forest MENCAP 

41. Epping Forest Multiple Sclerosis Society 

42. British Red Cross – Loughton Centre 

43. British Red Cross – Epping Centre 

 

Page 83



 
 
 

Page 84


